

Journal of the House

Friday, March 24, 2023

At nine o'clock and thirty minutes in the forenoon, the Speaker called the House to order.

Devotional Exercises

A moment of silence was observed in lieu of a devotion.

House Bills Introduced

House bills of the following titles were severally introduced, read the first time, and referred to committee as follows:

H. 489

By Reps. Brumsted of Shelburne and Lalley of Shelburne,
House bill, entitled

An act relating to approval of an amendment to the charter of the Town of Shelburne

To the Committee on Government Operations and Military Affairs.

H. 490

By Reps. LaBounty of Lyndon and Wilson of Lyndon,
House bill, entitled

An act relating to approving the merger of the Village of Lyndonville with the Town of Lyndon

To the Committee on Government Operations and Military Affairs.

Senate Bills Referred

Senate bills of the following titles were severally taken up, read the first time, and referred as follows:

S. 35

Senate bill, entitled

An act relating to the Town of Hartford's tax increment financing district

To the Committee on Ways and Means.

S. 36

Senate bill, entitled

An act relating to permitting an arrest without a warrant for assaults and threats against health care workers and disorderly conduct at health care facilities

To the Committee on Judiciary.

**Bill Referred to Committee on Appropriations
Pending Entry on the Notice Calendar****H. 276**

House bill, entitled

An act relating to creating a rental housing registry

Pending entry on the Notice Calendar, and pursuant to House Rule 35(a), carrying an appropriation, was referred to the Committee on Appropriations.

Third Reading; Bills Passed

House bills of the following titles were severally taken up, read the third time, and passed:

H. 66

House bill, entitled

An act relating to paid family and medical leave insurance

H. 127

House bill, entitled

An act relating to sports wagering

H. 157

House bill, entitled

An act relating to the Vermont basic needs budget

H. 165

House bill, entitled

An act relating to school food programs and universal school meals

H. 481

House bill, entitled

An act relating to public health initiatives to address death by suicide

H. 482

House bill, entitled

An act relating to Vermont Criminal Justice Council recommendations for law enforcement officer training

Second Reading; Bill Amended; Third Reading Ordered

H. 102

Rep. Headrick of Burlington, for the Committee on Corrections and Institutions, to which had been referred House bill, entitled

An act relating to the Art in State Buildings Program

Reported in favor of its passage when amended by striking all after the enacting clause and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

Sec. 1. REPEAL

29 V.S.A. chapter 2 (art in State buildings) is repealed.

Sec. 2. 29 V.S.A. chapter 2 is added to read:

CHAPTER 2. ART IN STATE BUILDINGS

§ 41. PURPOSE AND INTENT

(a) Purpose. The State of Vermont recognizes that public art improves the character and quality of State buildings; enhances the workplace of State employees by creating an environment of distinction, enjoyment, and pride; and adds value to the cultural, aesthetic, and economic vitality of the State.

(b) Intent. It is the intent of the General Assembly to support Vermont artists and the benefits of public art by providing ongoing funding for the commissioning of works of art for installation in State buildings and facilities.

§ 42. DEFINITIONS

As used in this chapter:

(1) “Addition” means any new construction that increases the height or floor area of an existing building or facility.

(2) “Art selection panel” means a Council-appointed group of individuals consisting of the Department of Buildings and General Services project manager, the project architect, a representative or representatives from the occupant agency or agencies, the community, and arts professionals who

forward recommendations of artwork to the Advisory Committee for final approval.

(3) “Commissioner” means the Commissioner of Buildings and General Services.

(4) “Contracting agency” means the administrative unit of State government responsible for securing the preparation of plans and specifications of a State building or facility for the purpose of negotiating or advertising for bids for the construction of such building or facility.

(5) “Council” means the Vermont Council on the Arts, Inc.

(6) “Mixed media” means any combination of two or more types of materials used to create a single work of art in two or three dimensions.

(7) “Occupant agency” means that public entity that has or will have principal authority to use or occupy a public building.

(8) “Project cost” means the budgeted cost of a construction or renovation project, which may include an addition, excluding the cost of design and of land acquisition or land improvement.

(9) “Project site” means any State building or facility undergoing new construction or renovation, which may include an addition, with a total project cost of \$1,000,000.00 or more that is funded from an appropriation or appropriations in one or more capital construction act and has been recommended for consideration by the Commissioner pursuant to this chapter.

(10) “State building or facility” means any State building, facility, permanent structure, park, or appurtenant structure thereof, wholly or partially enclosed, owned or leased by State government, that is to be constructed or renovated, which may include an addition, in part or totally with funds from any appropriation from the capital construction act. The term does not include highways, airport runways, or taxi ways, hangars, railroad tracks, sidings or yards, garages, sheds, warehouses, heating plants, sewers, parking lots, bridges, highway garages, or buildings used for storage or that are of a temporary nature. The term does not include buildings or facilities owned by units of local government, including school districts.

(11) “Work of art” means an original creation of visual art in sculpture, paintings, graphic arts, mosaics, photography, crafts, calligraphy, mixed media, or any other creation that the Advisory Committee deems a visual art. Works of art may be attached to the structure of a State building or facility or may be detached within or outside the structure.

§ 43. ART IN STATE BUILDINGS PROGRAM

(a) Program established. There is established the Art in State Buildings Program to authorize the State to fund and contract for the design, purchase, commission, fabrication, installation, and integration of permanent works of art during the design of new construction or renovation, which may include an addition, of State buildings and facilities. Works of art may be donated to the Program pursuant to the guidelines established in subdivision (b)(2) of this section, provided the donation meets the purpose and intent of the Program as described in section 41 of this chapter.

(b) Administration.

(1) The Vermont Council on the Arts, in coordination with the Department of Buildings and General Services and the Art in State Buildings Advisory Committee, shall administer the Program.

(2) The Commissioner of Buildings and General Services shall establish procedures to administer this chapter, including procedures for communicating with artists interested in donating works of art to the Program and the acceptance of donated works of art to the Program, pursuant to the requirements of 32 V.S.A. § 5.

(3) The Council shall establish contract procedures for commissioning with artists for the design and creation of works of art.

(c) Project site selection process.

(1) On or before July 1 each year, the Commissioner of Buildings and General Services shall recommend to the Council project sites for consideration under this chapter for the installation of artwork. In recommending a project site to the Council, the Commissioner shall give priority to buildings and facilities that are frequently visited by members of the public.

(2) The Commissioner and the Council shall present the recommendations to the Art in State Buildings Advisory Committee for final approval.

(d) Project design.

(1) Upon final selection for any approved project site, the contracting agency, in coordination with the Department of Buildings and General Services, shall:

(A) notify the architect of the provisions of this chapter, including the architect's participation on the art selection panel; and

(B) notify the Commissioner and the Council of the selection of the architect and the details of the project.

(2) The Commissioner of Buildings and General Services shall:

(A) ensure that early in the building design phase, the architect will discuss the potential placement and form of artwork with the art selection panel and the selected artist, and that bid specifications will inform potential contractors of the artwork to be installed in the building or facility; and

(B) assist occupant and contracting agencies in locating liability insurance for artwork when necessary.

(e) Artist selection process.

(1) Upon final approval of any project site by the Advisory Committee pursuant to subdivision (c)(2) of this section, the Council shall facilitate a process with the appointed art selection panel that will result in a recommendation of an artist or artist team for each project selected for installation of artwork. Priority in acquisitions and commissions of works of art shall be given to Vermont artists.

(2) The artist or artist team shall collaborate with the design team and the art selection panel during the initial design phase of the project.

(3) The Council shall arrange contracts with artists and order payments from the Art Acquisition Fund for the design and fabrication of such works of art.

(f) Installation of works of art. The Commissioner of Buildings and General Services and the Council shall review the final installation and placement of works of art.

(g) Ownership of works of art. The State of Vermont shall be the sole owner of all works of art acquired or commissioned through the Program. Title shall vest in the State upon completion of installation and final acceptance of the work of art.

§ 44. ADVISORY COMMITTEE

(a) Establishment. There is established the Art in State Buildings Advisory Committee to oversee the administration of the Program.

(b) Members. The Advisory Committee shall consist of the following or designee:

(1) the Commissioner of Buildings and General Services;

(2) the Director of the Arts Council;

(3) the Chairs of the House Committee on Corrections and Institutions and the Senate Committee on Institutions;

(4) the State Curator; and

(5) the Chair of the Vermont Board of Architects.

(c) Powers and duties. The Committee shall:

(1) provide final approval of project sites and works of art; and

(2) establish guidelines for the selection, acquisition, and commission of works of art.

(d) Compensation and reimbursements. Legislative members of the Committee shall be entitled to per diem compensation and expense reimbursement for attending Committee meetings pursuant to the provisions of 2 V.S.A. § 23.

§ 45. ART ACQUISITION FUND

(a) Creation. The Art Acquisition Fund, administered by the Council, is created to finance the design, construction, integration, and purchase or commissioning of works of art for the Art in State Buildings Program.

(b) Source of funds. The Fund shall be composed of any amounts transferred or appropriated to it by the General Assembly.

(c) Use of funds. Amounts in the Fund shall be expended upon order of the Council for the acquisition or commissioning of works of art and administration of the Program.

(d) Fund balances. Any balance remaining at the end of the fiscal year shall remain in the Fund.

(e) Administration costs. In each fiscal year, the Council may use not more than 15 percent of funds transferred or appropriated to the Fund for the expenses of administering this chapter.

(f) Funding requests. The Commissioner of Buildings and General Services shall include in the Department's proposed biennial capital budget request, as described in 32 V.S.A. § 310, a separate line item of not less than \$75,000.00 in any single fiscal year for the Art Acquisition Fund.

Sec. 3. 29 V.S.A. § 154a is amended to read:

§ 154a. STATE CURATOR

(a) Creation. The position of State Curator is created within the Department of Buildings and General Services.

(b) Duties. The State Curator's responsibilities shall include:

- (1) oversight of the historical integrity of the State House;
- (2) interpretation of the State House to the visiting public through exhibits, publications, tours, and other means of communication;
- (3) acquisition, management, and care of State collections of art, historic artifacts, and furnishings, provided that all items obtained for the State House are acquired pursuant to the collections policy adopted pursuant to subsection (c) of this section; ~~and~~
- (4) oversight and management of the State's historic and contemporary art and collections in other State buildings and on State property; and
- (5) maintenance and conservation of works of art acquired or commissioned by the State pursuant to chapter 2 of this title.

* * *

(e) Funding. The Curator, upon approval of the Commissioner of Buildings and General Services, is authorized to purchase artwork for the permanent State collection with funds appropriated to the Department for that or other purposes in any capital construction act.

Sec. 4. EFFECTIVE DATE

This act shall take effect on passage.

Rep. Taylor of Colchester, for the Committee on Ways and Means, recommended the bill ought to pass when amended by the Committee on Corrections and Institutions.

Rep. Bluemle of Burlington, for the Committee on Appropriations, recommended the bill ought to pass when amended by the Committee on Corrections and Institutions.

The bill, having appeared on the Notice Calendar, was taken up, read the second time, the report of the Committee on Corrections and Institutions agreed to, and third reading was ordered.

Second Reading; Bill Amended; Third Reading Ordered

H. 125

Rep. Mrowicki of Putney, for the Committee on Government Operations and Military Affairs, to which had been referred House bill, entitled

An act relating to boards and commissions

Reported in favor of its passage when amended as follows:

First: By inserting a new section to be Sec. 2a to read as follows:

Sec. 2a. GOVERNMENT ACCOUNTABILITY; SUMMER

GOVERNMENT ACCOUNTABILITY COMMITTEE; REPORT

(a) Creation. There is created the Summer Government Accountability Committee to reexamine the principle of government accountability in the Legislative Branch.

(b) Membership. The Summer Government Accountability Committee shall be composed of the following members:

(1) four current members of the House of Representatives, not from the same political party, who shall be appointed by the Speaker of the House; and

(2) four current members of the Senate, not from the same political party, who shall be appointed by the Committee on Committees.

(c) Powers and duties. The Summer Government Accountability Committee shall consider the issue of accountability in the Legislative Branch, including the following:

(1) ways to ensure that the Legislative Branch is accountable to the people of Vermont by creating new processes and metrics by which to measure accountability;

(2) ways to ensure equity in pay across commissions, boards, and joint legislative committees based on the nature of the service and required skill level; and

(3) codifying mechanisms for controlling and restraining the increasing number of commissions, boards, and joint legislative committees.

(d) Assistance. For purposes of scheduling meetings and preparing recommended legislation, the Summer Government Accountability Committee shall have the assistance of the Office of Legislative Operations and the Office of Legislative Counsel.

(e) Report. On or before January 15, 2024, the Summer Government Accountability Committee shall report to the House Committee on Government Operations and Military Affairs and the Senate Committee on Government Operations with any recommendations for legislative action.

(f) Meetings.

(1) A member of the House of Representatives designated by the Speaker of the House shall call the first meeting of the Summer Government Accountability Committee to occur on or before July 1, 2023.

(2) The Summer Government Accountability Committee shall select a chair from among its members at the first meeting.

(3) A majority of the members of the Summer Government Accountability Committee shall constitute a quorum.

(4) The Summer Government Accountability Committee shall cease to exist on November 1, 2024.

(g) Compensation and reimbursement.

(1) For attendance at meetings during adjournment of the General Assembly, the members of the Summer Government Accountability Committee shall be entitled to per diem compensation and reimbursement of expenses pursuant to 2 V.S.A. § 23 for not more than four meetings. These payments shall be made from monies appropriated to the General Assembly.

Second: In Sec. 101, 18 V.S.A. § 4201, by striking out subsection (45) in its entirety and inserting in lieu thereof a new subsection (45) to read as follows:

(45) “Benchmark unlawful dosage” means the maximum recommended therapeutic dose, or maximum daily dose, as determined by the Department by rule.

Third: In Sec. 140, effective dates, by striking out “and Sec. 137 (amending 30 V.S.A. § 8015), shall take effect on June 30, 2025” and inserting in lieu thereof “and Sec. 137 (amending 30 V.S.A. § 8015) shall take effect on June 30, 2027.”

Rep. Branagan of Georgia, for the Committee on Ways and Means, recommended the bill ought to pass when amended by the Committee on Government Operations and Military Affairs.

Rep. Bluemle of Burlington, for the Committee on Appropriations, recommended the bill ought to pass when amended by the Committee on Government Operations and Military Affairs.

The bill, having appeared on the Notice Calendar, was taken up, read the second time, the report of the Committee on Government Operations and Military Affairs agreed to, and third reading was ordered.

Second Reading; Bill Amended; Third Reading Ordered

H. 206

Rep. Goldman of Rockingham, for the Committee on Health Care, to which had been referred House bill, entitled

An act relating to miscellaneous changes affecting the duties of the Department of Vermont Health Access

Reported in favor of its passage when amended by striking all after the enacting clause and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

Sec. 1. 33 V.S.A. § 1992 is amended to read:

§ 1992. MEDICAID COVERAGE FOR ADULT DENTAL SERVICES

(a) Vermont Medicaid shall provide coverage for medically necessary dental services provided by a dentist, dental therapist, or dental hygienist working within the scope of the provider's license as follows:

(1) Preventive services, including prophylaxis and fluoride treatment, with no co-payment. These services shall not be counted toward the annual maximum benefit amount set forth in subdivision (2) of this subsection.

(2)(A) Diagnostic, restorative, and endodontic procedures, to a maximum of \$1,000.00 per calendar year, provided that the Department of Vermont Health Access may approve expenditures in excess of that amount when exceptional medical circumstances so require. Exceptional medical circumstances include emergency dental services, as defined by the Department by rule.

(B) The following individuals shall not be subject to the annual maximum benefit amount set forth in this subdivision (2):

(i) individuals served through the Community Rehabilitation and Treatment and Developmental Disability Services programs pursuant to Vermont's Global Commitment to Health Section 1115 demonstration; and

(ii) Medicaid beneficiaries who are pregnant or in the postpartum eligibility period, as defined by the Department by rule.

(3) Other dental services as determined by the Department by rule.

* * *

Sec. 2. 33 V.S.A. chapter 19, subchapter 1 is amended to read:

Subchapter 1. Medicaid

* * *

§ 1908. MEDICAID; PAYER OF LAST RESORT; RELEASE OF INFORMATION

* * *

(d) On and after July 1, 2016, an insurer shall:

(1) ~~accept~~ Accept the Agency's right of recovery and the assignment of rights and shall not charge the Agency or any of its authorized agents fees for

the processing of claims or eligibility requests. Data files requested by or provided to the Agency shall provide the Agency with eligibility and coverage information that will enable the Agency to determine the existence of third-party coverage for Medicaid recipients, the period during which Medicaid recipients may have been covered by the insurer, and the nature of the coverage provided, including information such as the name, address, and identifying number of the plan.

(2) If the insurer requires prior authorization for an item or service, accept the Agency's authorization that the item or service is covered under the Medicaid state plan or waiver as if such authorization were the insurer's prior authorization.

* * *

§ 1909. DIRECT PAYMENTS TO AGENCY; DISCHARGE OF
INSURER'S OBLIGATION

* * *

(c)(1) An insurer that receives notice that the Agency has made payments to the provider shall pay benefits or send notice of denial directly to the Agency. Receipt of an Agency claim form by an insurer constitutes notice that payment of the claim was made by the Agency to the provider and that form supersedes any contract requirements of the insurer relating to the form of submission.

(2) An insurer shall respond to any request made by the Agency regarding a claim for payment for any health care item or service that is submitted not later than three years after the date of the provision of such health care item or service.

(3) An insurer shall not:

(A) deny a claim submitted by the Agency solely on the basis of the date of submission of the claim, the type or format of the claim form, or a failure to present proper documentation at the point-of-sale that is the basis of the claim, if the claim is submitted by the Agency within the three-year period beginning on the date on which the item or service was furnished and any action by the Agency to enforce its rights with respect to a claim is commenced within six years of following the Agency's submission of the claim; or

(B) deny a claim submitted by the Agency on the basis of failing to obtain a prior authorization for the item or service for which the claim is being submitted, if the Agency has transmitted authorization that the item or service

is covered by the Medicaid state plan or waiver under subdivision 1908(d)(2) of this title.

* * *

Sec. 3. 18 V.S.A. § 4284 is amended to read:

§ 4284. PROTECTION AND DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION

* * *

(b)(1) The Department shall provide only the following persons with access to query the VPMS:

(A) a health care provider, dispenser, or delegate who is registered with the VPMS and certifies that the requested information is for the purpose of providing medical or pharmaceutical treatment to a bona fide current patient;

(B) personnel or contractors, as necessary for establishing and maintaining the VPMS;

(C) the Medical Director of the Department of Vermont Health Access and the Director's designee, for the purposes of Medicaid quality assurance, utilization, and federal monitoring requirements with respect to Medicaid recipients for whom a Medicaid claim for a Schedule II, III, or IV controlled substance has been submitted;

(D) a medical examiner or delegate from the Office of the Chief Medical Examiner, for the purpose of conducting an investigation or inquiry into the cause, manner, and circumstances of an individual's death; and

(E) a health care provider or medical examiner licensed to practice in another state, to the extent necessary to provide appropriate medical care to a Vermont resident or to investigate the death of a Vermont resident.

* * *

Sec. 4. FEDERALLY QUALIFIED HEALTH CENTERS; ALTERNATIVE
PAYMENT METHODOLOGY; REPORT

The Department of Vermont Health Access shall collaborate with representatives of Vermont's federally qualified health centers (FQHCs) to develop a mutually agreeable alternative payment methodology for Medicaid payments to the FQHCs. On or before December 15, 2023, the Department shall provide a progress report on the development of the methodology to the House Committee on Health Care and the Senate Committee on Health and Welfare.

Sec. 5. EFFECTIVE DATE

This act shall take effect on July 1, 2023.

Rep. Page of Newport City, for the Committee on Appropriations, recommended the bill ought to pass when amended by the Committee on Health Care.

The bill, having appeared on the Notice Calendar, was taken up, read the second time, the report of the Committee on Health Care agreed to, and third reading was ordered.

Second Reading; Bill Amended; Third Reading Ordered**H. 213**

Rep. Krasnow of South Burlington, for the Committee on General and Housing, to which had been referred House bill, entitled

An act relating to creating a study committee on mobile homes and mobile home parks

Reported in favor of its passage when amended by striking all after the enacting clause and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

Sec. 1. MOBILE HOME AND MOBILE HOME PARK STUDY; REPORT

(a) Creation. There is created the Mobile Home Task Force.

(b) Membership. The Task Force is composed of the following members:

(1) one current member of the House of Representatives, appointed by the Speaker of the House;

(2) one current member of the Senate, appointed by the Committee on Committees;

(3) one member, appointed by the Department of Housing and Community Development;

(4) one member, appointed by the Champlain Valley Office of Economic Opportunity;

(5) one member, appointed by The Housing Foundation Inc.;

(6) one member, appointed by the Speaker of the House, representing mobile home cooperative owners; and

(7) one member, appointed by the Vermont Housing and Conservation Board.

(c) Powers and duties. The Task Force shall study the current landscape for mobile homes and mobile home parks in this State, including the following issues:

(1) the status of mobile homes and mobile home parks within Vermont's housing portfolio;

(2) the condition and needs for mobile home park infrastructure among parks of various sizes;

(3) the current statutory treatment of mobile homes either as personal or real property;

(4) modern construction, energy efficiency, and durability of manufactured housing, and the availability, affordability, and suitability of alternative types of manufactured, modular, or other housing;

(5) the type and scope of data and information collected concerning mobile home residents, mobile homes, and mobile home parks and opportunities to make the data and information more centralized, accessible, and useful for informing policy decisions; and

(6) conversion to cooperative ownership and technical assistance available to prospective and new cooperative owners, including the availability of guidance concerning governance structures, operation, and conflict resolution.

(d) Assistance. For purposes of scheduling meetings and preparing a report and recommendations, the Task Force shall have the assistance of the Office of Legislative Operations, the Office of Legislative Counsel, and the Joint Fiscal Office.

(e) Report. On or before January 15, 2024, the Task Force shall submit a written report to the House Committee on General and Housing and the Senate Committee on Economic Development, Housing and General Affairs with its findings and any recommendations for legislative action.

(f) Meetings.

(1) The House of Representatives' member shall call the first meeting of the Task Force to occur on or before September 1, 2023.

(2) The Committee shall select a chair from among its members at the first meeting.

(3) A majority of the membership shall constitute a quorum.

(4) The Task Force shall cease to exist on January 15, 2024.

(g) Compensation and reimbursement.

(1) For attendance at meetings during adjournment of the General Assembly, a legislative member of the Task Force shall be entitled to per diem compensation and reimbursement of expenses pursuant to 2 V.S.A. § 23 for not more than six meetings.

(2) Other members of the Task Force shall be entitled to per diem compensation and reimbursement of expenses as permitted under 32 V.S.A. § 1010 for not more than six meetings.

Sec. 2. EFFECTIVE DATE

This act shall take effect on July 1, 2023.

Rep. Bluemle of Burlington, for the Committee on Appropriations, recommended that the bill report of the Committee on General and Housing be amended as follows:

In Sec. 1, by adding a new subdivision (g)(3) to read:

(3) Payments to members of the Task Force authorized under this subsection shall be made from monies appropriated to the General Assembly.

Rep. Long of Newfane presiding.

The bill, having appeared on the Notice Calendar, was taken up, read the second time, and the report of the Committee on General and Housing was amended as recommended by the Committee on Appropriations. Report of the Committee on General and Housing, as amended, agreed to and third reading ordered.

Second Reading; Bill Amended; Third Reading Ordered

H. 270

Rep. McCarthy of St. Albans City, for the Committee on Government Operations and Military Affairs, to which had been referred House bill, entitled

An act relating to miscellaneous amendments to the adult-use and medical cannabis programs

Reported in favor of its passage when amended by striking all after the enacting clause and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

Sec. 1. 7 V.S.A. § 843 is amended to read:

§ 843. CANNABIS CONTROL BOARD; DUTIES; MEMBERS

* * *

(h) ~~Advisory committee.~~

~~(1) There is an advisory committee established within the Board that shall be composed of members with expertise and knowledge relevant to the Board's mission. The Board shall collaborate with the advisory committee on recommendations to the General Assembly. The advisory committee shall be composed of the following 14 members:~~

~~(A) one member with an expertise in public health, appointed by the Governor;~~

~~(B) the Secretary of Agriculture, Food and Markets or designee;~~

~~(C) one member with an expertise in laboratory science or toxicology, appointed by the Governor;~~

~~(D) one member with an expertise in systemic social justice and equity issues, appointed by the Speaker of the House;~~

~~(E) one member with an expertise in women and minority-owned business ownership, appointed by the Speaker of the House;~~

~~(F) the Chair of the Substance Misuse Prevention Oversight and Advisory Council or designee;~~

~~(G) one member with an expertise in the cannabis industry, appointed by the Senate Committee on Committees;~~

~~(H) one member with an expertise in business management or regulatory compliance, appointed by the Treasurer;~~

~~(I) one member with an expertise in municipal issues, appointed by the Senate Committee on Committees;~~

~~(J) one member with an expertise in public safety, appointed by the Attorney General;~~

~~(K) one member with an expertise in criminal justice reform, appointed by the Attorney General;~~

~~(L) the Secretary of Natural Resources or designee;~~

~~(M) the Chair of the Cannabis for Symptom Relief Oversight Committee or designee; and~~

~~(N) one member appointed by the Vermont Cannabis Trade Association.~~

~~(2) Initial appointments to the advisory committee as provided in subdivision (1) of this subsection (h) shall be made on or before July 1, 2021.~~

~~(3) The Board may establish subcommittees within the advisory committee to accomplish its work.~~

~~(4) Members of the advisory committee who are not otherwise compensated by the member's employer for attendance at meetings shall be entitled to per diem compensation and reimbursement of expenses as permitted under 32 V.S.A. § 1010 for not more than six meetings annually. These payments shall be made from the Cannabis Regulation Fund. [Repealed.]~~

Sec. 2. REPEAL; SUNSET OF CANNABIS CONTROL BOARD

2020 Acts and Resolves No. 164, Sec. 6e is repealed.

Sec. 3. 7 V.S.A. § 861 is amended to read:

§ 861. DEFINITIONS

As used in this chapter:

* * *

(2) "Advertisement" means any written or verbal statement, illustration, or depiction that ~~is calculated to induce~~ would reasonably have the effect of inducing sales of cannabis or cannabis products, including any written, printed, graphic, or other material; billboard, sign, or other outdoor display; other periodical literature, publication, or in a radio or television broadcast; the Internet; or in any other media. The term does not include:

(A) any label affixed to any cannabis or cannabis product or any individual covering, carton, or other wrapper of that container that constitutes a part of the labeling under provisions of these standards;

(B) any editorial or other reading material, such as a news release, in any periodical or publication or newspaper for the publication of which no money or valuable consideration is paid or promised, directly or indirectly, by any cannabis establishment, and that is not written by or at the direction of the licensee;

(C) any educational, instructional, or otherwise noncommercial material that is not intended to induce sales and that does not propose an economic transaction, but that merely provides information to the public in an unbiased manner; or

(D) a sign attached to the premises of a cannabis establishment that merely identifies the location of the cannabis establishment.

* * *

(8) "Cannabis establishment" means a cannabis cultivator, propagation cultivator, wholesaler, product manufacturer, retailer, testing laboratory, or

integrated licensee licensed by the Board to engage in commercial cannabis activity in accordance with this chapter.

* * *

(31) “Cannabis propagation cultivator” or “propagation cultivator” means a person licensed by the Board to cultivate cannabis clones, immature plants, and mature plants in accordance with this chapter.

Sec. 4. 7 V.S.A. § 881 is amended to read:

§ 881. RULEMAKING; CANNABIS ESTABLISHMENTS

(a) The Board shall adopt rules to implement and administer this chapter in accordance with subdivisions (1)–~~(7)~~(8) of this subsection.

* * *

(3) Rules concerning product manufacturers shall include:

(A) requirements that a single package of a cannabis product shall not contain more than ~~50~~ 100 milligrams of THC, except in the case of:

(i) cannabis products that are not consumable, including topical preparations;

(ii) solid concentrates, oils, and tinctures; and

(iii) cannabis products sold to a dispensary pursuant to 18 V.S.A. chapter 86 and rules adopted pursuant to that chapter;

* * *

(5) Rules concerning retailers shall include:

* * *

(E) ~~facility inspection~~ requirements and procedures for facility inspection to occur at least annually.

* * *

(8) Rules concerning propagators shall include:

(A) requirements for proper verification of age of customers;

(B) pesticides or classes of pesticides that may be used by propagators, provided that any rules adopted under this subdivision (8) shall comply with and shall be at least as stringent as the Agency of Agriculture, Food and Markets’ Vermont Pesticide Control Regulations;

(C) standards for indoor cultivation of cannabis;

(D) procedures and standards for testing cannabis for contaminants, potency, and quality assurance and control;

(E) labeling requirements for cannabis sold to retailers and integrated licensees;

(F) regulation of visits to the establishments, including the number of visitors allowed at any one time and record keeping concerning visitors; and

(G) facility inspection requirements and procedures.

* * *

Sec. 5. 7 V.S.A. § 901 is amended to read:

§ 901. GENERAL PROVISIONS

(a) Except as otherwise permitted by law, a person shall not engage in the cultivation, preparation, processing, packaging, transportation, testing, or sale of cannabis or cannabis products without obtaining a license from the Board.

* * *

~~(h)(1) The following records shall be exempt from public inspection and copying under the Public Records Act and shall be confidential:~~

~~(A) any record in an application for a license relating to security, public safety, transportation, or trade secrets, including information provided in an operating plan pursuant to subdivision 881(a)(1)(B) of this title; and~~

~~(B) any licensee record relating to security, public safety, transportation, trade secrets, or employees.~~

~~(2) Notwithstanding 1 V.S.A. § 317(e), the Public Records Act exemption created in this subsection shall continue in effect and shall not be repealed through operation of 1 V.S.A. § 317(e). [Repealed.]~~

Sec. 6. 7 V.S.A. § 901a is added to read:

§ 901a. ACCESSIBILITY AND CONFIDENTIALITY OF LICENSING

AND DISCIPLINARY MATTERS

(a) It is the purpose of this section to protect the reputation, security practices, and trade secrets of licensees from undue public disclosure while securing the public's right to know of government licensing actions relevant to the public health, safety, and welfare.

(b) All meetings and hearings of the Board shall be subject to the Open Meeting Law as provided in 1 V.S.A. § 312.

(c) The following shall be exempt from public inspection and copying under the Public Records Act and shall be kept confidential:

(1) records related to licensee security, safety, transportation, or trade secrets, including information provided in an operating plan pursuant to subdivision 881(a)(1)(B) of this title; and

(2) records related to investigations, except as provided in subsection (d) of this section.

(d)(1) If a complaint or investigation results in formal action to revoke, suspend, condition, reprimand, warn, fine, or otherwise to penalize a licensee based on noncompliance with law or regulation, the case record, as defined by 3 V.S.A. § 809(e), shall be public.

(2) The Board shall prepare and maintain an aggregated list of all closed investigations into misconduct or noncompliance from whatever source derived. The information contained in the list shall be a public record. The list shall contain the date, nature, and outcome of each complaint. The list shall not contain the identity of the subject licensee unless formal action resulted, as described in subdivision (1) of this subsection.

(e) Notwithstanding 1 V.S.A. § 317(e), the Public Records Act exemption created in this section shall continue in effect and shall not be repealed through operation of 1 V.S.A. § 317(e).

Sec. 7. 7 V.S.A. § 904 is amended to read:

§ 904. CULTIVATOR LICENSE

(a) A cultivator licensed under this chapter may:

(1) cultivate, process, package, label, transport, test, and sell cannabis to a licensed wholesaler, product manufacturer, retailer, integrated licensee, and dispensary and may;

(2) purchase and sell cannabis seeds and immature cannabis plants to another licensed cultivator and propagation cultivator; and

(3) possess and sell cannabis products to a licensed wholesaler, product manufacturer, retailer, integrated licensee, and dispensary.

* * *

Sec. 8. 7 V.S.A. § 904b is added to read:

§ 904b. PROPAGATION CULTIVATOR LICENSE

(a) A propagation cultivator licensed under this section may:

(1) cultivate not more than 3,500 square feet of cannabis clones, immature cannabis plants, or mature cannabis plants;

(2) test, transport, and sell cannabis clones and immature cannabis plants to licensed cultivators; and

(3) test, transport, and sell cannabis seeds that meet the federal definition of hemp to a licensed cultivator or retailer or to the public.

(b) A licensed propagation cultivator shall not cultivate mature cannabis plants for the purpose of producing, harvesting, transferring, or selling cannabis flower for or to any person.

Sec. 9. 7 V.S.A. § 905 is amended to read:

§ 905. WHOLESALER LICENSE

A wholesaler licensed under this chapter may:

(1) ~~purchase cannabis from a licensed cultivator and integrated licensee, and cannabis products from a licensed product manufacturer, integrated licensee, and dispensary~~ cannabis establishment;

(2) transport, process, package, and sell cannabis and cannabis products to a licensed ~~product manufacturer, retailer, integrated licensee, and dispensary~~ cannabis establishment; and

(3) sell cannabis seeds or immature cannabis plants to a licensed cultivator.

Sec. 10. 7 V.S.A. § 906 is amended to read:

§ 906. PRODUCT MANUFACTURER LICENSE

A product manufacturer licensed under this chapter may:

(1) ~~purchase cannabis from a licensed cultivator, wholesalers, or integrated licensee, and cannabis products from a licensed wholesaler, product manufacturer, integrated licensee, and dispensary~~ cannabis establishment;

(2) use cannabis and cannabis products to produce cannabis products; and

(3) transport, process, package, and sell cannabis products to a licensed ~~wholesaler, product manufacturer, retailer, integrated licensee, and dispensary~~ cannabis establishment.

Sec. 11. 7 V.S.A. § 907 is amended to read:

§ 907. RETAILER LICENSE

(a) A retailer licensed under this chapter may:

(1) purchase cannabis from a licensed cultivator, wholesaler, or integrated licensee, and cannabis products from a licensed wholesaler, product manufacturer, integrated licensee, and dispensary cannabis establishment; and

(2) transport, possess, package, and sell cannabis and cannabis products to the public for consumption off the registered premises or for cultivation.

* * *

Sec. 12. 7 V.S.A. § 910 is amended to read:

§ 910. CANNABIS ESTABLISHMENT FEE SCHEDULE

The following fees shall apply to each person or product licensed by the Board:

* * *

(3) Manufacturers.

(A) Manufacturer tier 1. Manufacturers that process and manufacture cannabis in order to produce cannabis products without using solvent-based extraction and not more than ~~\$10,000.00~~ \$50,000.00 per year in cannabis products based on the manufacturer's total annual sales in cannabis products shall be assessed an annual licensing fee of \$750.00.

* * *

(7) Propagation cultivators. Propagation cultivators shall be assessed an annual licensing fee of \$500.00.

(8) Employees. Cannabis establishments licensed by the Board shall be assessed an annual licensing fee of \$50.00 for each employee.

~~(8)~~(9) Products. Cannabis establishments licensed by the Board shall be assessed an annual product licensing fee of \$50.00 for every type of cannabis and cannabis product that is sold in accordance with this chapter.

~~(9)~~(10) Local licensing fees. Cannabis establishments licensed by the Board shall be assessed an annual local licensing fee of \$100.00 in addition to each fee assessed under subdivisions (1)–~~(6)~~(7) of this section. Local licensing fees shall be distributed to the municipality in which the cannabis establishment is located pursuant to section 846(c) of this title.

~~(10)~~(11) One-time fees.

(A) All applicants for a cannabis establishment license shall be assessed an initial one-time application fee of \$1,000.00.

(B) An applicant may choose to be assessed an initial one-time intent-to-apply fee of \$500.00. If the applicant subsequently seeks a license

within one year after paying the intent-to-apply fee, the initial one-time application fee of \$1,000.00 shall be reduced by \$500.00.

Sec. 13. 7 V.S.A. chapter 35 is amended to read:

CHAPTER 35. MEDICAL CANNABIS REGISTRY

§ 951. DEFINITIONS

As used in this chapter:

* * *

(8) “Qualifying medical condition” means:

(A) cancer, multiple sclerosis, positive status for human immunodeficiency virus, acquired immune deficiency syndrome, glaucoma, Crohn’s disease, Parkinson’s disease, post-traumatic stress disorder, or the treatment of these conditions, if the disease or the treatment results in severe, persistent, and intractable symptoms; or

~~(B) post-traumatic stress disorder, provided the Department confirms the applicant is undergoing psychotherapy or counseling with a licensed mental health care provider; or~~

~~(C)~~ a disease or medical condition or its treatment that is chronic, debilitating, and produces one or more of the following intractable symptoms: cachexia or wasting syndrome, chronic pain, severe nausea, or seizures.

* * *

§ 952. REGISTRY

* * *

(b) A person who is a registered patient or a registered caregiver on behalf of a patient may:

(1) Cultivate not more than ~~two~~ six mature and ~~seven~~ 12 immature cannabis plants. Any cannabis harvested from the plants shall not count toward the two-ounce possession limit in subdivision (2) of this subsection, provided it is stored in an indoor facility on the property where the cannabis was cultivated and reasonable precautions are taken to prevent unauthorized access to the cannabis.

(2) Possess not more than two ounces of cannabis.

(3) Purchase cannabis and cannabis products at a licensed medical cannabis dispensary. Pursuant to chapter 37 of this title, a dispensary may offer goods and services that are not permitted at a cannabis establishment licensed pursuant to chapter 33 of this title.

* * *

§ 954. CAREGIVERS

(a) Pursuant to rules adopted by the Board, a person may register with the Board as a caregiver of a registered patient to obtain the benefits of the Registry as provided in section 952 of this title.

~~(b)(1) The Board shall adopt rules that set forth standards for determining whether an applicant should be denied a caregiver card because of his or her criminal history record. An applicant shall not be denied solely on the basis of a criminal conviction that is not listed in 13 V.S.A. chapter 25 or 28~~ conduct a name and date of birth Vermont criminal conviction record background check and obtain information from the Child Protection Registry maintained by the Department for Children and Families and from the Vulnerable Adult Abuse, Neglect, and Exploitation Registry maintained by the Department of Disabilities, Aging, and Independent Living (collectively, the Registries) for any person who applies to be a caregiver. The Departments for Children and Families and of Disabilities, Aging, and Independent Living shall adopt rules governing the process for obtaining information from the Registries and for disseminating and maintaining records of that information under this subsection.

~~(2) The Board shall obtain from the Vermont Crime Information Center a copy of the caregiver applicant's fingerprint-based Vermont criminal history records, out-of-state criminal history records, and criminal history records from the Federal Bureau of Investigation.~~

(c) The Board shall adopt rules that set forth standards for determining whether an applicant should be denied a ~~cannabis establishment license caregiver card~~ caregiver card because of his or her ~~criminal history record~~ the applicant's criminal history record or status on either Registry.

(d)(1) Except as provided in subdivision (2) of this subsection, a caregiver ~~shall serve only one patient~~ may serve not more than two patients at a time, and a patient shall have only one registered caregiver at a time. A patient may serve as a caregiver for one other patient.

(2) A patient who is under 18 years of age may have two caregivers. Additional caregivers shall be at the discretion of the Board.

§ 955. REGISTRATION; FEES

(a) A registration card shall expire one year after the date of issuance for patients with a qualifying medical condition of chronic pain and the caregivers who serve those patients. For all other patients and the caregivers who serve those patients, a registration card shall expire five years after the date of

issuance. A patient or caregiver may renew the card according to protocols adopted by the Board.

(b) The Board shall charge and collect a \$50.00 ~~annual~~ registration and renewal fee for patients and caregivers. Fees shall be deposited in the Cannabis Regulation Fund as provided in section 845 of this title.

§ 956. RULEMAKING

The Board shall adopt rules for the administration of this chapter. ~~No rule shall be more restrictive than any rule adopted by the Department of Public Safety pursuant to 18 V.S.A. chapter 86.~~

Sec. 14. 7 V.S.A. § 977 is amended to read:

§ 977. FEES

(a) The Board shall charge and collect the following fees for dispensaries:

(1) a one-time \$2,500.00 application fee;

(2) a ~~\$20,000.00~~ \$10,000.00 registration fee for the first year of operation;

(3) an annual renewal fee of ~~\$25,000.00~~ \$10,000.00 for a subsequent year of operation; and

(4) an annual Registry identification or renewal card fee of \$50.00 to be paid by the dispensary for each owner, principal, financier, and employee of the dispensary.

(b) Fees shall be deposited in the Cannabis Regulation Fund as provided in section 845 of this title.

Sec. 15. 7 V.S.A. § 1002 is amended to read:

§ 1002. LICENSE REQUIRED; APPLICATION; FEE; ISSUANCE

(a)(1) No person shall engage in the retail sale of tobacco products, tobacco substitutes, or tobacco paraphernalia in ~~his or her~~ the person's place of business without a tobacco license obtained from the Division of Liquor Control.

(2) No person shall engage in the retail sale of tobacco substitutes without also obtaining a tobacco substitute endorsement from the Division of Liquor Control.

(3) Tobacco licenses and tobacco substitute endorsements shall expire at midnight, April 30, of each year.

(4) This subsection shall not apply to the retail sale of tobacco paraphernalia by a cannabis establishment licensed in accordance with chapter

33 of this title or a medical cannabis dispensary licensed in accordance with chapter 37 of this title.

* * *

Sec. 16. CANNABIS CONTROL BOARD POSITIONS; CANNABIS
QUALITY CONTROL PROGRAM; APPROPRIATION

(a) The establishment of the following new permanent classified positions is authorized in the Cannabis Control Board in fiscal year 2024:

(1) two new chemists; and

(2) one new Cannabis Quality Assurance Program Director.

(b) In fiscal year 2024, the amount of \$850,000.00 is transferred from the General Fund to the Cannabis Regulation Fund to acquire laboratory equipment and analytical instruments for the cannabis quality control program established pursuant to 7 V.S.A. § 885. The instruments shall be sufficient to test for cannabinoid content, moisture content, and homogeneity, and conduct analysis on residual solvents, pesticides, heavy metals, and human pathogens.

Sec. 17. 2020 Acts and Resolves No. 164, Sec. 6d is amended to read:

Sec. 6d. AUDITOR OF ACCOUNTS REPORT

On or before November 15, ~~2023~~ 1, 2024, the Auditor of Accounts shall report to the General Assembly regarding the organizational structure and membership of the Cannabis Control Board and whether the structure continues to be the most efficient for carrying out the statutory duties of the Board.

Sec. 18. EFFECTIVE DATE

This act shall take effect on July 1, 2023.

Speaker presiding.

Rep. Branagan of Georgia, for the Committee on Ways and Means, recommended that the report of the Committee on Government Operations and Military Affairs be amended as follows:

First: In Sec. 13, 7 V.S.A. chapter 35, in section 954, in subsection (b), by striking out “conduct” and inserting in lieu thereof “Conduct”

Second: By striking out Sec. 14, 7 V.S.A. § 977, in its entirety and by renumbering the remaining sections to be numerically correct.

Rep. Scheu of Middlebury, for the Committee on Appropriations, recommended that the report of the Committees on Government Operations and Military Affairs be amended as follows:

First: In Sec. 13, 7 V.S.A. § 954, by striking out subsection (b) in its entirety and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

~~(b)(1) The Board shall adopt rules that set forth standards for determining whether an applicant should be denied a caregiver card because of his or her criminal history record. An applicant shall not be denied solely on the basis of a criminal conviction that is not listed in 13 V.S.A. chapter 25 or 28~~ conduct a name and date of birth Vermont criminal conviction record background check and obtain information from the Child Protection Registry maintained by the Department for Children and Families and from the Vulnerable Adult Abuse, Neglect, and Exploitation Registry maintained by the Department of Disabilities, Aging, and Independent Living (collectively, the Registries) for any person who applies to be a caregiver. The Departments for Children and Families and of Disabilities, Aging, and Independent Living shall adopt rules governing the process for obtaining information from the Registries and for disseminating and maintaining records of that information under this subsection.

~~(2) The Board shall obtain from the Vermont Crime Information Center a copy of the caregiver applicant's fingerprint-based Vermont criminal history records, out-of-state criminal history records, and criminal history records from the Federal Bureau of Investigation.~~

Second: By striking out Secs. 15, Cannabis Control Board positions; Cannabis Quality Control Program; appropriation, and 16, Auditor of Accounts; report, in their entireties

and by renumbering the remaining section to be numerically correct.

The bill, having appeared on the Notice Calendar, was taken up, read the second time, and the report of the Committee on Government Operations and Military Affairs was amended as recommended by the Committee on Ways and Means. Thereafter, the report of the Committee on Government Operations and Military Affairs, as amended, was further amended as recommended by the Committee on Appropriations.

Thereafter, the bill was amended as recommended by the Committee on Government Operations and Military Affairs, as amended, and third reading ordered.

Recess

At twelve o'clock and fifteen minutes in the afternoon, the Speaker declared a recess until the fall of the gavel.

At one o'clock and four minutes in the afternoon, the Speaker called the House to order.

**Second Reading; Bill Amended;
Third Reading Ordered****H. 291**

Rep. Chase of Colchester, for the Committee on Government Operations and Military Affairs, to which had been referred House bill, entitled

An act relating to the creation of the Cybersecurity Advisory Council

Reported in favor of its passage when amended as follows:

First: In Sec. 1, 20 V.S.A. chapter 208, in section 4662, in subdivision (b)(11), by striking out “and”, in subdivision (12), by striking out “;” and inserting in lieu thereof “; and” and by adding a subdivision (13) to read as follows:

(13) the President of Vermont Information Technology Leaders or designee.

Second: In Sec. 1, 20 V.S.A. chapter 208, in section 4663, in subdivision (b)(2), by inserting “Care” after “Green Mountain”

Third: By striking out Sec. 3, effective date, in its entirety and inserting in lieu thereof a new Sec. 3 and a Sec. 4 to read as follows:

Sec. 3. REPEAL

20 V.S.A. chapter 208 (Cybersecurity) is repealed on June 30, 2026.

Sec. 4. EFFECTIVE DATE

This act shall take effect on July 1, 2023.

Rep. Long of Newfane presiding.

Rep. Harrison of Chittenden, for the Committee on Appropriations, recommended that the bill ought to pass when amended as recommended by the Committee on Government Operations and Military Affairs and when further amended as follows:

In Sec. 1, 20 V.S.A. chapter 208, in section 4662, by adding a subsection (h) to read as follows:

(h) Compensation and reimbursement.

(1) For attendance at meetings during adjournment of the General Assembly, a legislative member of the Council serving in the member's capacity as a legislator shall be entitled to per diem compensation and reimbursement of expenses pursuant to 2 V.S.A. § 23. These payments shall be made from monies appropriated to the General Assembly.

(2) Other members of the Council who are not otherwise compensated or reimbursed for their attendance shall be entitled to per diem compensation and reimbursement of expenses as permitted under 32 V.S.A. § 1010. These payments shall be made from monies appropriated to the Agency of Digital Services.

The bill, having appeared on the Notice Calendar, was taken up, read the second time, and the bill was amended as recommended by the Committee on Government Operations and Military Affairs, and further amended as recommended by the Committee on Appropriations, and third reading ordered.

Second Reading; Bill Amended; Third Reading Ordered

H. 414

Rep. Goldman of Rockingham, for the Committee on Health Care, to which had been referred House bill, entitled

An act relating to establishing an unused drug repository for Vermont

Reported in favor of its passage when amended by striking all after the enacting clause and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

Sec. 1. 18 V.S.A. chapter 91, subchapter 5 is added to read:

Subchapter 5. Unused Drug Repository Program

§ 4671. CREATION OF PROGRAM

The Agency of Human Services may contract or enter into agreements with qualified entities as needed to create and administer an unused drug repository program for the collection and distribution of unused drugs in Vermont, to the extent that funds are appropriated or otherwise made available for this purpose.

§ 4672. AGENCY OF HUMAN SERVICES; RULEMAKING

The Agency of Human Services shall adopt rules for the administration of the program, including rules regarding:

(1) donations to the program, which may include donations from institutional settings in Vermont, such as pharmacies, long-term care facilities,

Veterans' Administration facilities, correctional facilities, hospitals, and other facilities, as well as donations from individuals;

(2) what types of drugs may be donated to the program;

(3) safety criteria for donated drugs, which may include packaging requirements and inspections; and

(4) patient eligibility to receive drugs from the program, which shall be available to any patient, with priority given to patients who meet one or more of the following criteria:

(A) patients whose household income is below 400 percent of the federal poverty level;

(B) patients who are uninsured;

(C) patients who are underinsured;

(D) patients who are Medicare beneficiaries and are experiencing a coverage gap in their Medicare prescription drug coverage; and

(E) patients who are on a high-deductible health plan or on a plan with high co-payment requirements for prescription drugs, or both.

§ 4673. LIMITATIONS ON LIABILITY

Except in cases of bad faith, gross negligence, intentional misconduct, or noncompliance with the rules adopted pursuant to section 4672 of this chapter, the following persons shall not be subject to civil or criminal liability or professional disciplinary action for participating in or otherwise complying with the program established by this subchapter or rules adopted pursuant to this subchapter:

(1) a person who donates or gives drugs to an eligible recipient, including a drug manufacturer; wholesaler; reverse distributor pharmacy; third-party logistics provider; governmental entity; hospital or other health care facility, as defined in section 9432 of this title; or long-term care facility licensed under 33 V.S.A. chapter 71;

(2) an eligible recipient, as defined by the Agency by rule pursuant to subdivision 4672(4) of this chapter;

(3) a health care provider, as defined in section 9402 of this title, who prescribes or dispenses a donated drug;

(4) an intermediary that helps administer the program by facilitating the donation or transfer of drugs to eligible recipients;

(5) a manufacturer or repackager of a donated drug; and

(6) any employee, volunteer, trainee, or other staff of any person listed in subdivisions (1)–(5) of this section.

Sec. 2. UPDATE ON RULEMAKING PROCESS; REPORT

The Agency of Human Services shall provide an update on the status of rulemaking for the administration of the unused drug repository program as part of the Agency’s fiscal year 2024 budget adjustment presentation.

Sec. 3. EFFECTIVE DATE

This act shall take effect on July 1, 2023.

Rep. Dickinson of St. Albans Town, for the Committee on Appropriations, recommended the bill ought to pass when amended by the Committee on Health Care.

Speaker presiding.

The bill, having appeared on the Notice Calendar, was taken up, read the second time, the report of the Committee on Health Care agreed to, and third reading was ordered.

Committee Bill; Second Reading; Third Reading Ordered

H. 472

Rep. Pearl of Danville spoke for the Committee on Agriculture, Food Resiliency, and Forestry.

House bill, entitled

An act relating to miscellaneous agricultural subjects

Rep. Sims of Craftsbury, for the Committee on Ways and Means, recommended the bill ought to pass.

Rep. Toleno of Brattleboro, for the Committee on Appropriations, recommended the bill ought to pass.

The bill, having appeared on the Notice Calendar, was taken up, read the second time, and third reading ordered.

Amendment Offered; Read Third Time; Bill Passed

H. 126

House bill, entitled

An act relating to community resilience and biodiversity protection

Was taken up and, pending third reading of the bill, **Rep. Parsons of Newbury** moved to amend the bill as follows:

First: In Sec. 3, 10 V.S.A. chapter 89, in section 2803, in subsection (b), in subdivision (2), by inserting after “private land” the words “and how much of each is in each county”

Second: In Sec. 3, 10 V.S.A. chapter 89, in section 2804, in subsection (b), by striking out subdivision (2) in its entirety and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

(2) the implementation methods for achieving the vision and goals of this chapter using Vermont Conservation Design as a guide, which should include a geographically equitable distribution of conserved land;

Pending the question, Shall the bill be amended as offered by Rep. Parsons of Newbury?, **Rep. Parsons of Newbury** asked that the question be divided to consider the first and second instances of amendment separately.

Thereafter, the question, Shall the bill be amended as offered by Rep. Parsons of Newbury in the first instance of amendment?, was disagreed to. Thereafter, the second instance of amendment offered by **Rep. Parsons of Newbury** was disagreed to, the bill was read a third time, and passed.

Message from the Senate No. 32

A message was received from the Senate by Ms. Kucserik, its Assistant Secretary, as follows:

Madam Speaker:

I am directed to inform the House that:

The Senate has on its part passed Senate bills of the following titles:

S. 47. An act relating to the transport of individuals requiring psychiatric care.

S. 73. An act relating to workers’ compensation coverage for firefighters with cancer.

S. 99. An act relating to miscellaneous changes to laws related to vehicles.

S. 103. An act relating to amending the prohibitions against discrimination.

S. 112. An act relating to miscellaneous subjects related to the Public Utility Commission.

In the passage of which the concurrence of the House is requested.

The Senate has on its part adopted concurrent resolutions originating in the House of the following titles:

H.C.R. 57. House concurrent resolution congratulating the 2023 Mill River Union High School Minutemen Division II championship cheerleading team.

H.C.R. 58. House concurrent resolution designating April 2023 as Vermont Habitat for Humanity Month.

H.C.R. 59. House concurrent resolution congratulating the 2023 Spaulding High School Crimson Tide Division I championship girls' ice hockey team.

H.C.R. 60. House concurrent resolution commemorating the 90th anniversary of the establishment of the Civilian Conservation Corps.

H.C.R. 61. House concurrent resolution congratulating the undefeated 2023 Georgia Middle School Chargers girls' basketball team.

H.C.R. 62. House concurrent resolution congratulating the undefeated 2022 Georgia Middle School Chargers girls' soccer team.

H.C.R. 63. House concurrent resolution congratulating the undefeated 2022–2023 Georgia Middle School Chargers boys' basketball team.

H.C.R. 64. House concurrent resolution honoring exemplary Kirby Town Clerk-Treasurer Wanda Grant.

H.C.R. 65. House concurrent resolution congratulating the 2023 Winooski High School Spartans Division III championship boys' basketball team.

H.C.R. 66. House concurrent resolution congratulating the 2023 North Country Union High School Falcons Division II championship girls' basketball team.

H.C.R. 67. House concurrent resolution honoring outstanding Concord Town Clerk Cynthia Gaboriault.

H.C.R. 68. House concurrent resolution recognizing March 2023 as Social Work Month in Vermont.

H.C.R. 69. House concurrent resolution honoring former President James Earl Carter as a tireless international humanitarian and public servant.

H.C.R. 70. House concurrent resolution honoring Heidi Baitz for her outstanding contribution to public education in the Town of Ludlow.

Adjournment

At two o'clock and thirty-two minutes in the afternoon, on motion of **Rep. McCoy of Poultney**, the House adjourned until Tuesday, March 28, 2023, at ten o'clock in the forenoon, pursuant to the provisions of J.R.S. 20.

Concurrent Resolutions Adopted

The following concurrent resolutions, having been placed on the Consent Calendar on the preceding legislative day, and no member having requested floor consideration as provided by Rule 16b of the Joint Rules of the Senate and House of Representatives, are hereby adopted on the part of the House:

H.C.R. 57

House concurrent resolution congratulating the 2023 Mill River Union High School Minutemen Division II championship cheerleading team

H.C.R. 58

House concurrent resolution designating April 2023 as Vermont Habitat for Humanity Month

H.C.R. 59

House concurrent resolution congratulating the 2023 Spaulding High School Crimson Tide Division I championship girls' ice hockey team

H.C.R. 60

House concurrent resolution commemorating the 90th anniversary of the establishment of the Civilian Conservation Corps

H.C.R. 61

House concurrent resolution congratulating the undefeated 2023 Georgia Middle School Chargers girls' basketball team

H.C.R. 62

House concurrent resolution congratulating the undefeated 2022 Georgia Middle School Chargers girls' soccer team

H.C.R. 63

House concurrent resolution congratulating the undefeated 2022–2023 Georgia Middle School Chargers boys' basketball team

H.C.R. 64

House concurrent resolution honoring exemplary Kirby Town Clerk-Treasurer Wanda Grant

H.C.R. 65

House concurrent resolution congratulating the 2023 Winooski High School Spartans Division III championship boys' basketball team

H.C.R. 66

House concurrent resolution congratulating the 2023 North Country Union High School Falcons Division II championship girls' basketball team

H.C.R. 67

House concurrent resolution honoring outstanding Concord Town Clerk Cynthia Gaboriault

H.C.R. 68

House concurrent resolution recognizing March 2023 as Social Work Month in Vermont

H.C.R. 69

House concurrent resolution honoring former President James Earl Carter as a tireless international humanitarian and public servant

H.C.R. 70

House concurrent resolution honoring Heidi Baitz for her outstanding contribution to public education in the Town of Ludlow

[The full text of the concurrent resolutions appeared in the House Calendar Addendum on the preceding legislative day and will appear in the Public Acts and Resolves of the 2023 Biennial Session.]